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DECISION


Lisa Giacomino is subject to discipline because she pled guilty to a felony offense involving moral turpitude, failed to disclose this on her license application, and failed to respond to a request for information.
Procedure


On May 12, 2010, the Director of the Department of Insurance, Financial Institutions and Professional Registration (“the Director”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Giacomino.  On February 12, 2011, Giacomino was personally served with a copy of the complaint, our notice of complaint/notice of hearing, and our order dated January 28, 2011.  Giacomino did not file an answer.

On April 29, 2011, the Director filed a motion for summary decision.  Our Regulation     1 CSR 15-3.446(5) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the Director 
establishes facts that (a) Giacomino does not dispute and (b) entitle the Director to a favorable decision.  We gave Giacomino until May 13, 2011, to respond to the motion, but she did not respond. 

Findings of Fact

1. Giacomino was licensed as an insurance producer in Missouri, effective February 11, 2009.  The license expired on February 11, 2011.
2. On October 19, 2004, in United States of America v. Lisa Marie Giacomino, Case Number CR00210-LRS, in the United States District Court (“the Court”), Eastern District of Washington, the following Indictment was filed against Giacomino:
COUNT 1

That on or about June 8, 2004, in Spokane County, Eastern District of Washington, LISA MARIE GIACOMINO did knowingly and intentionally distribute a mixture or substance, specifically, at least 1 gram, but less than 2 grams, of a mixture or substance, containing cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C).

COUNT 2

That on or about July 1, 2004, in Spokane County, Eastern District of Washington, LISA MARIE GIACOMINO did knowingly and intentionally distribute a mixture or substance, specifically, at least 4 grams, but less than 5 grams, of a mixture or substance, containing cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C).

COUNT 3

That on or about July 20, 2004, in Spokane County, Eastern District of Washington, LISA MARIE GIACOMINO did knowingly and intentionally distribute a mixture or substance, specifically, at least 2 grams, but less than 3 grams, of a mixture or substance, containing cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C).[
]

3. On February 9, 2006, Giacomino pled guilty to distribution of a mixture or substance containing cocaine base in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1) (Counts 2 and 3) and was sentenced to 28 months’ imprisonment on each count, to run concurrently, and three years of supervised release upon release from imprisonment.
4. On February 11, 2009, the Director received Giacomino’s electronic uniform application for non-resident individual producer license (“the application”).  Under “Background Questions,” Question #1 of the Application asks:  “Have you ever been convicted of a crime, had a judgment withheld or deferred, or are you currently charged with committing a crime?”  Giacomino answered “No” to Background Question #1.

5. At some time before June 12, 2009, Giacomino was denied an unrestricted insurance producer license by the State of California.

6. On June 12, 2009, the Director received a letter from Giacomino, in which she states:

My name is Lisa Giacomino and I wanted to let you know that I got denied in the state of California because of a criminal drug possession background.  I was told that this wouldn’t show up in my background and that I started the expungement last year 2008.  My intensions [sic] were never to mislead you in anyway [sic].  Please except [sic] this letter and the administrative action paperwork from the state of California. Please let me know if you have any questions regarding this.  Thank you.[
]
7. On June 28, 2009, Consumer Affairs Division Special Investigator Les Hogue  mailed a letter to Giacomino at her address of record, requesting a detailed letter of explanation regarding allegations of failure to disclose in the application the prior court action.  Hogue requested a written response by July 20, 2009.  The letter was not returned as undeliverable.  Giacomino did not respond to the June 28, 2009, letter.

8. On July 28, 2009, Hogue mailed a second letter to Giacomino at her address of record, again requesting a detailed letter of explanation regarding allegations of failure to disclose in the application the prior court action.  Hogue requested a response by August 7, 2009.  The letter was not returned as undeliverable.  Giacomino did not respond to the July 28, 2009, letter.

9. By order dated July 15, 2009, Giacomino was denied an unrestricted insurance producer license by the State of California.  She was granted a restricted license to act as a personal lines broker-agent.
Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the case.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Giacomino has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Director argues that there is cause for discipline under § 375.141:

1.  The director may suspend, revoke, refuse to issue or refuse to renew an insurance producer license for any one or more of the following causes:
(1) Intentionally providing materially incorrect, misleading, incomplete or untrue information in the license application;

(2) Violating any insurance laws, or violating any regulation, subpoena or order of the director or of another insurance commissioner in any other state;

(3) Obtaining or attempting to obtain a license through material misrepresentation or fraud;

*   *   *

(6) Having been convicted of a felony or crime involving moral turpitude;

*   *   *

(9) Having an insurance producer license, or its equivalent, denied, suspended or revoked in any other state, province, district or territory[.]

License Application – Subdivision (1)

The Director argues that Giacomino intentionally provided materially incorrect, misleading, and untrue information when she answered the question as to whether she had ever been convicted of a crime.  The dictionary definition of “material” is “having real importance or great consequences[.]”
  We agree.  She was convicted upon her guilty plea and sentenced to prison.  This information was material to her application for licensure.


There is cause for discipline under § 375.141.1(1).

Violating Insurance Law – Subdivision (2)


The Director argues that Giacomino violated Regulation 20 CSR 100-4.100:
(2) Except as required under subsection (2)(B) –

(A) Upon receipt of any inquiry from the division, every person shall mail to the division an adequate response to the inquiry within twenty (20) days from the date the division mails the inquiry.  An envelope’s postmark shall determine the date of mailing.  When the requested response is not produced by the person within twenty (20) days, this nonproduction shall be deemed a violation of this rule, unless the person can demonstrate that there is reasonable justification for that delay.
Giacomino failed to respond to either of the investigator’s letters as required by the Director’s regulation.  There is cause for discipline under § 375.141.1(2).
Misrepresentation or Fraud – Subdivision (3)


Fraud is an intentional perversion of truth to induce another, in reliance on it, to part with some valuable thing belonging to him.
  It necessarily includes dishonesty, which is a lack of 
integrity or a disposition to defraud or deceive.  Misrepresentation is a falsehood or untruth made with the intent and purpose of deceit.
  

Giacomino’s negative answer to the question on her application as to whether she had been convicted of a crime constituted fraud and misrepresentation.  There is cause for discipline under § 375.141.1(3).

Conviction – Subdivision (6)


The Director argues that Giacomino pled guilty to a felony and a crime involving moral turpitude.  Giacomino pled guilty to 21 U.S.C.A. § 841:

(a) Unlawful acts

Except as authorized by this subchapter, it shall be unlawful for any person knowingly or intentionally –

(1) to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, or possess with intent to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, a controlled substance[.]

Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”[
]

In Brehe v. Missouri Dep’t of Elementary and Secondary Education,
 a case that involved discipline of a teacher’s certificate under § 168.071 for committing a crime involving moral turpitude, the court referred to three classifications of crimes:

(1) crimes that necessarily involve moral turpitude, such as frauds (Category 1 crimes);

(2) crimes “so obviously petty that conviction carries no suggestion of moral turpitude,” such as illegal parking (Category 2 crimes); and

(3) crimes that “may be saturated with moral turpitude,” yet do not involve it necessarily, such as willful failure to pay income tax or refusal to answer questions before a congressional committee (Category 3 crimes).

The court stated that Category 3 crimes require consideration of “the related factual circumstances” of the offense to determine whether moral turpitude is involved.


We determine that this narcotics offense is a Category 1 crime involving moral turpitude.
  The crime is also a felony.

There is cause for discipline under § 375.141.1(6).
License Denied – Subdivision (9)

Giacomino’s application for an unrestricted license was denied by the State of California.  There is cause for discipline under § 375.141.1(9).
Summary


There is cause for discipline under § 375.141.1(1), (2), (3), 6), and (9).  We grant the motion for summary decision and cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on June 7, 2011.


________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.


Commissioner

�Mot. Ex. B.


�Mot. Ex. C. 


�The Director’s complaint states that the date of the California decision is May 29, 2009, but Exhibit D to the motion shows a signed and effective date of the decision as July 15, 2009, as noted in our finding below.  But we make this finding because Giacomino obviously knew of the denial when she informed the Director.


�Mot. Ex. E.


�Section 621.045.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to RSMo Supp. 2010.


�Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  


�MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 765 (11th ed. 2004).


�State ex rel. Williams v. Purl, 128 S.W. 196, 201 (Mo. 1910).  


�MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 794(11th ed. 2004).  


�In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).  


�213 S.W.3d 720 (Mo. App., W.D. 2007).


�Id. at 725 (quoting Twentieth Century-Fox Film Corp. v. Lardner, 216 F.2d 844, 852 (9th Cir. 1954)).


	�Brehe, 213 S.W.3d at 725.


�See Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 709 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).
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